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INTRODUCTORY SECTION

December 1, 2014
Honorable Board of Directors
Sacramento Area Sewer District

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Sacramento Area
Sewer District (District) for the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 is
hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests
with the District. To the best of our staff’s knowledge and belief, the enclosed
data is accurate in all material respects and is reported to present fairly the
financial position and results of operations of the District. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s
financial activities have been included.
The CAFR is divided into four sections: introductory, financial, statistical, and
bond disclosure. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, a
listing of the District’s Board of Directors, a listing of officials, an organizational
chart, and a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.
The financial section includes the independent auditor’s report, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), and audited financial statements. The
statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information
generally presented on a multi-year basis. The bond disclosure section
includes disclosures required by Security and Exchange Commission Rule
15c2-12(b) (5) for any municipal bond issue closing after July 1, 1995.
An independent auditor audits the financial statements of the District each
year. The firm of Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP was selected to perform the
independent audit for the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. The
independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial
section of this report. The goal of the independent audit is to provide
reasonable assurance that the basic financial statements of the District are free
of material misstatement. The independent audit involves examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Based upon the audit the independent auditor concluded that
there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the
District’s financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and
2013 are fairly presented in all material respects in conformity with United
States generally accepted accounting principles.
Generally accepted
accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction
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overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The District’s MD&A can be
found immediately following the report of the independent auditor.
PROFILE OF THE DISTRICT
The Sacramento Area Sewer District (District), a sanitation district organized under the laws of
the State of California, is also a contributing agency of the Sacramento Regional County
Sanitation District (Regional San). The District was formed in 1978 by consolidating 10 smaller
districts to provide a common service rate structure for the customers in the affected areas as
well as savings gained through efficiencies and economy of scale due to operating one district
instead of 10. The District is governed by a 10-member Board of Directors comprised of the
Sacramento County Board of Supervisors, plus a member of the city councils of the cities of
Sacramento, Folsom, Citrus Heights, Elk Grove, and Rancho Cordova.
The District’s 270 square-mile service area consists of the urban, unincorporated area of
Sacramento County as well as the cities of Citrus Heights, Elk Grove, and Rancho Cordova;
portions of the City of Sacramento; and a small area in the City of Folsom. Serving 1.2 million
people, the District maintains and operates 3,000 miles of main line pipes, 1,400 miles of lower
lateral pipes, 65,000 manholes, and 108 pump stations.
The District is staffed by Sacramento County employees in the Sanitation Districts Agency
(SDA). Employees of the SDA’s Department of Sacramento Area Sewer District Operations
operate and maintain the wastewater collection system owned by the District. Oversight of
personnel matters is provided through the Board of Supervisors and the County Executive’s
Office.
FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION
The Sacramento region continued showing signs of economic stabilization in 2013.
Unemployment, as high as 10.7 percent in July 2012 according to the Bureau of Labor Statistics
(BLS), decreased to 7.4 percent as of July 2014. In its second quarter report on employment
trends, employment specialist Pacific Staffing indicated overall hiring in the region is up since
2008. The Sacramento region has a high concentration of government employers, many of
which are continuing to recover from fiscal difficulties. Analysts from the University of the
Pacific’s Eberhardt School of Business project government employment to stabilize in 2014 with
slow state and local government employment growth thereafter. Although unemployment has
decreased, the U.S. census figures indicate the median household income in the Sacramento
region fell slightly in 2013. The Capital region’s private sector saw some gains in healthcare
offset by closures of Campbell’s Soup Company and Comcast.
Real estate activity in the Sacramento region continues to show signs of improvement.
Foreclosures and short sales continue to decline and homes spend less time on the real estate
market. The July 2014 Sacramento Business Review states the median price of existing homes
rose about 13 percent in June 2014 compared to June 2013, however new home sales
decreased 10.3 percent, per the Sacramento Bee.
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Impact Fees and Equivalent Single-Family Dwelling (ESDs)
The District realized an increase of 1,942 ESDs in Fiscal Year 2013-14 and projects an increase
of 1,890 ESDs in 2014-15. The table below illustrates a five-year history of ESD growth for the
District.

District Equivalent Single-Family Dwellings
Residential/Commercial Customers
Fiscal Years 2009-10 through 2013-14

Total

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

399,298

400,178

401,405

402,705

404,647

Effective February 23, 2013, the District’s impact fees decreased from $2,500 to $2,282 per
ESD in expansion areas and from $2,000 to $420 per ESD in relief areas. These reductions are
the result of a change in methodology for calculating impact fees derived from the District’s Rate
and Fee Study. The District’s sewer impact fee revenue decrease in Fiscal Year 2013-14
resulted from a Fiscal Year 2012-13 mid-year impact fee reduction of 10 percent per ESD while
impact fees increased by 3 percent per ESD in Fiscal Year 2013-14.
Despite the slow economic recovery, reduction of impact fees, slow growth, and lower interest
earnings, the District has maintained a strong financial position. The District does not rely on
impact fees from growth in order to meet its debt service and capital needs. By maintaining
status quo budgets for several years, the District met, and continues to meet, its financial
obligations and operating goals.
CRITICAL ISSUES AFFECTING THE DISTRICT
While the District has maintained a financially stable position, there are critical issues that have
occurred or could occur over the next several years that could impact the District.


Legal challenges continue to be a hazard of the wastewater industry. In 2012, the
District settled a lawsuit brought by the California Sportfishing Protection Alliance that
increased planned maintenance and operational costs and called for higher service-level
requirements that continue to affect the District.



Increasing state regulations continue to affect the District. The State Waste Discharge
Requirements placed on public wastewater collection systems are increasing costs to
own and operate a collection system. Other areas of stricter regulations include
Stormwater-quality at construction sites and the District’s North County and Goethe
Road corporation yards, and air quality regulations for heavy equipment and generators.



In order to address emerging age-related infrastructure issues, the District developed an
asset sustainability strategy that includes a comprehensive condition assessment
program for mainlines, pump stations, force mains, lower-laterals, and reinforced
concrete pipe. Estimates of cost increases and appropriate reserve levels associated
with the condition assessment program could be significant. By the year 2022, the North
Area Corporation Yard will require significant renewal or replacement.
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Recently negotiated labor contracts call for cost-of-living adjustments over the next three
to five years that will result in higher salary costs.



Retirement and health benefit costs for government employees have been increasing at
a rate higher than general inflation and are projected to continue to increase at high
rates until broad reforms are implemented. Recent labor settlements have some labor
groups that represent some of the District’s employees picking up a larger share of
retirement benefit costs beginning in FY 2014-15. This could reduce the level of cost
increases for retirement benefits over the next three years.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING
The District prepares a number of long-term planning documents to assist in achieving its vision
and goals while carrying out its mission. Some of these planning documents are:


Comprehensive Long-Term Financial Plan (CLTFP) – The District prepared its first
CLTFP in the fall of 2012. The CLTFP will be updated in the fall of 2014. The CLTFP is
comprised of data regarding financial markets and trends, financial performance
measures, critical issues, a 10-year financial forecast and forecast assumptions, a 10year Capital Funding Projection that serves as the strategic document to estimate the
District’s funding needs, and debt policies, goals and strategies for managing the
District’s debt portfolio. The updated CLTFP will be presented to the District’s Board of
Directors in the fall of 2014 and will continue to be updated at least annually.



2010 Sewer System Capacity Plan – Adopted by the Board of Directors in January 2012,
the plan ensures the District’s sewer collection system continues to serve its customers
now and into the future by identifying areas of possible capacity deficiencies. Focused
on existing and build-out sewer capacity over the 10-year horizon, the plan identifies
potential capacity deficiencies, develops possible solutions to re-establish system
performance in relief areas, and updates trunk expansion alternatives from previous
planning documents. Modeling of hydraulic performance resulted in capital cost
projections of $911 million in 2010 dollars over the next 100 years. Future customers
will pay capital costs via sewer impact fees, and projects benefiting existing customers
will be funded through monthly service charges.



2012 Asset Management Plan – Projects the lifecycle of the District’s assets and
provides an overview of asset maintenance, operation, and replacement costs as well as
life expectancies and long-range projections for sustainability.



The District is continuing its extensive rate and fee study to analyze methodologies for
calculating monthly sewer rates and impact fees in order to optimize a sustainable rate
and fee structure. The scope of the study includes identification and development of
financial policies that will support the rate and fee structure and a revised revenue model
to assist in projecting future revenue requirements.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS
The District produces an annual State of the District Report that highlights yearly
accomplishments. These accomplishments include meeting or exceeding six of the District’s
targeted service levels. Examples of service levels are included in the table below.
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Service Level
Main line overflow rate per 100 miles of sewer main lines
Lower lateral overflow rate per 100 miles of sewer lower lateral lines
Customer Satisfaction

Target Score
0.50
0.34
8.0
8.1
90%
94%

The District continued to promote its FOG (fats, oils and grease) program by distributing its new
“Stop the Clog” materials at six local area events, including the Elk Grove Giant Pumpkin
Festival and the Safetyville Halloween Haunt Harvest Festival.
The District takes opportunities to form and maintain beneficial partnerships with organizations
throughout its service area. Organizations provide a venue to reach out and educate the public
regarding the District’s mission and programs. Below are two examples of successful
partnerships:


Partnership with the Sacramento Rental Housing Association to further FOG outreach
efforts by informing property owners, managers, maintenance staff, and tenants about
FOG related sewer problems.



Partnership with the Sacramento Area Creeks Council to provide public educational
opportunities about the District’s sewer system and the protection of local creeks. The
partners participate in Creek Week and Creek Cleanup Day.

CURRENT MAINTENANCE, DESIGN, AND CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES
The District continues to carry out its comprehensive sewer rehabilitation program to address its
aging sewer pipes and structures, some of which are more than 50 years old. The goal of this
program is to maintain the serviceability of the sanitary sewer system and protect the
community’s $4.0 billion investment (replacement cost) in this critical infrastructure.
The condition of the District’s sewer pipelines is closely monitored to assist in maintaining the
system's sustainability. A detailed evaluation is performed when needed to ascertain the
condition of the sewer pipelines and potential risks to the District and its customers. A number
of programs and projects to assist in maintaining the collection system and reduce blockages
and sewer overflows have been implemented.


Lower Lateral Overflow Reduction Program consists of annual cleaning of lower-laterals
to reduce lower-lateral pipeline sewer overflows. The Program includes installation of
about 1,200 cleanouts and television inspections of approximately 2,100 lower-lateral
pipelines. The annual cost is approximately $2.0 million.



Lower Lateral Cleaning and Backups-into-Structures Reduction Program consists of
annual cleaning of about 15,600 lower-lateral pipelines to reduce sewer overflows and
backups into structures. The annual cost is approximately $1.33 million.



Lower Lateral Root Mitigation Lining Project focuses on eliminating roots in pipelines and
reducing the need for high frequency cleaning in about 500 lower-lateral pipelines by
installing a cured-in-place pipeline inside the existing pipeline. The annual cost is
approximately $1.2 million.
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Main Line Cleaning Program consists of cleaning approximately 10,000 smaller-indiameter main line pipes to reduce sewer overflows. The annual cost is about $1.25
million.



Main Line Maintenance and Repair Program consists of ongoing repair of sewer
cleanouts, lower lateral and main line pipelines, and pump station components. The
annual cost is approximately $1.5 million.

The following capital projects are currently in design or under construction.


The Creek Protection Project Phase 2 is in design and will address five additional sites
that require repair or modification of existing District pipelines in order to reduce the risk
of overflows into waterways. Repairs and modifications could include re-routing of
sewage flows; tunneling under the waterway to a lift station; and installation of new
structural supports, casings, and carrier pipelines.



Main Line Root Mitigation Project is focused on reducing or eliminating the need for
frequent maintenance associated with root mitigation, thereby helping the District
continue to meet the Main Line Overflow Rate Service Level. Work includes installing
approximately 10,596 feet of 6-inch diameter cured-in-place pipe in main lines located in
backyard easements, as well as reinstating 256 lateral connections.



Lower Lateral Replacement Projects is the replacement of approximately 400 lower
lateral pipelines in various areas throughout the District’s service area. The annual cost
is approximately $3.7 million.



Lower Lateral Lining Projects is concentrated on lining approximately 200 lower lateral
pipelines in various areas throughout the District’s service area. The annual cost is
approximately $0.7 million.



Main Line Lining Projects will include the lining of a 39-inch sewer pipeline crossing a
waterway along Franklin Boulevard. The approximate cost is $4.15 million.



Cleanout Installation Projects consist of installation of approximately 300 cleanouts at
various locations throughout the District’s service area.
The annual cost is
approximately $580,000.



Pump Station/Force Main Rehabilitation is focused on rehabilitation of up to five pump
stations and the assessment of five additional pump stations. The annual cost is
approximately $770,000.



Rollingwood Sewer Replacement is under construction and addresses capacity
deficiencies from Treeleaf Way across I-80, along Oakberry Way and Rollingwood
Boulevard to Antelope Road.

FUTURE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES
The District continues to conduct evaluations and planning level activities for future relief and
rehabilitation projects while ensuring sufficient capacity will be available when needed.
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Marconi Fulton Sewer Replacement project is in the planning stage and will address
predicted capacity deficiencies along Marconi Avenue and Pope Avenue near Fulton
Avenue.



Don Julio/Watt Sewer Replacement project is in the planning stage and will address
predicted capacity deficiencies in the area of Don Julio Boulevard and Watt Avenue.



Arden Gold Sewer Replacement project will address predicted capacity deficiencies east
of Hazel Avenue near Madison Avenue. This project is currently being evaluated.



Rio Linda 5th Street Sewer Relief project is in the planning stage and will address wetweather capacity deficiencies in the gravity system on Rio Linda Boulevard at O Street,
east on O Street, south on 5th Street, east on K Street, and K Street at 6th Street.

INTERNAL CONTROLS
The District’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls
designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to
ensure that accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal controls are designed to
provide a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met recognizing
that: (1) the cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.
BUDGETARY CONTROLS
The District prepares annual operational and capital budgets to serve as an approved financial
plan for operational control and performance evaluation. The District prepares only a final
budget for adoption by the Board of Directors in late May or early June. The adopted budget
becomes effective on July 1st of the corresponding fiscal year. The final budget for Fiscal Year
2013-14 was approved by the District’s Board of Directors on May 8, 2013.
Department and County level controls require the use of requisitions, purchase orders,
contracts, and specific approval, as well as verification procedures to verify expenses and
ensure budgeted amounts are not exceeded. Monthly comparison of actual-to-budgeted
revenues and expenses identify significant variances that may require the District to take
corrective action.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION
In July 2010, the District issued $110.7 million in Federally Taxable Direct Subsidy Build
America Bonds (BABs) (Series 2010A) and Tax-exempt Revenue Bonds in the amount of $15.9
million (Series 2010B). The District will receive revenue from federal subsidies for the BABs of
$63.8 million over the life of the bonds. As of June 30, 2014, the District has approximately
$267.5 million in outstanding long-term debt and has no plans to issue bonds in the foreseeable
future.
An indicator of the District’s continuing strong financial performance is its underlying bond
ratings. The District’s most recent uninsured bond ratings were Aa2, AA, and AA by Moody’s,
Standard & Poor’s, and Fitch, respectively.
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AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
In 2013, the District received several awards for its public outreach and education programs.


Communications Concepts Inc. National APEX - Publication Excellence Award,
Campaigns, Programs and Plans – Government Agency Communications category for
the District’s Fats, Oil & Grease (FOG) Program Media Campaign.



Rental Housing Association (RHA) – Community Partner of the Year Award, the
Districts’s partnership with RHA on the FOG awareness program.



Marcom Awards – Honorable Mention Award , Print Media, Direct Marketing, Advertising
Campaign category for the Districts’s Customer Awareness Ad Campaign.



Sacramento Environmental Commission – Honorable Mention Award, Achievement of a
Successful Environmental Education/Outreach Program for the District’s FOG Program

The District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013
and 2012 was awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting by
the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA). The
Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition for excellence in state and local
government financial reporting. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report, in which contents conform to program standards. Such a report must
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe the District
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we will be
submitting our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the current year to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.
We would especially like to offer our sincere thanks and gratitude to Glen Iwamura and
supporting staff for their conscientious and timely work. This internally-generated CAFR
represents an important accomplishment for the District, and it is our hope and expectation to
continue to improve upon the award-winning CAFRs the District has presented in past years.
The District would also like to recognize the unwavering support of the Board of Directors. The
tangible result of this support is inherent in the high standard of professionalism and fiscal
management outlined in this document.
Respectfully submitted,

Joseph T. Maestretti, CPA
District Chief Financial Officer
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP

VA L U E T H E D I F F E R E N C E

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Sacramento Area Sewer District
Sacramento, California
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Sacramento Area Sewer District (the District), as
of and for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in
the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the District as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and its changes in financial position and its cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 9 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, statistical and bond disclosure
sections are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such additional information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
Other Reports Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 1, 2014, on
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Sacramento, California
December 1, 2014
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
This section of the District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) presents a
discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal years ending
June 30, 2014 and 2013. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of
this report and the District’s basic financial statements following this section.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
 At June 30, 2014, the assets of the District exceed liabilities by $769 million (net
position). Of this amount, $10 million was restricted for specific purposes, $124 million
was unrestricted and $635 million was invested in capital assets, net of related debt.
The assets of the District exceed liabilities at June 30, 2013 by $751 million (net
position). Of this amount, $12 million was restricted for specific purposes, $115 million
was unrestricted and $624 million was invested in capital assets, net of related debt.
 The District’s total net position increased by $18.0 and $8.7 million during 2013-14 and
2012-13, respectively. The increase during fiscal year 2013-14 was attributable to
contributed capital of $33.9 million offset by a $15.9 million operating loss. The increase
during fiscal year 2012-13 was attributable to normal operations and contributed capital.
 The decrease in long-term debt of $5 million in 2013-14 was due to scheduled debt
service payments of $5 million. The decrease in long-term debt of $5 million in 2012-13
was due to scheduled debt service payments of $5 million.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic
financial statements.
The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of two
components: the basic financial statements and notes to the basic financial statements.
Basic Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
District’s finances.
The Statements of Net Position (page 10) present information on all District assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
District is improving or deteriorating.
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (page 11) present
information showing how net position changed during the most recent two fiscal years. All
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected service charges).The Statements of Cash Flows (page 14) present
information about the cash receipts and cash payments of the District during the two most
recent fiscal years.
When used with related disclosures and information in the other financial statements, the
information provided in these statements should help financial report users assess the District’s
ability to generate future net cash flows, its ability to meet its obligations as they come due, and
its need for external financing. It also provides insight into the reasons for differences between
operating income and associated cash receipts and payments; and the effects on the District’s
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
financial position of its cash and its noncash investing, capital, and related financing
transactions during the year.
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (page 14) provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the District’s basic financial statements.
The notes are included immediately following the basic financial statements within this report.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
As previously noted, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District’s
financial position. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, total net position was $769 million and $751
million, respectively. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, net position
increased $18.0 million and $8.7 million, respectively. These increases in net position
corroborate an improved financial position of the District during those years, compared to 2012.
The following table summarizes the changes between assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and
net position as of June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012:
Condensed Statements of Net Position
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

2014
Assets:
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net
Total assets

$

Liabilities:
Current and other liabilities
Long-term obligations
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Net position:
Net investment in
capital assets
Restricted for capital
construction
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

% Change

168,755
17,849
895,303
1,081,907

3.4%
-19.4%
1.1%
1.0%

15,893
262,246
34,347
312,486

2013

2012

163,268
22,157
885,462
1,070,887

11.8%
-74.9%
-0.7%
-4.9%

8.1%
-2.0%
-7.9%
-2.2%

14,704
267,480
37,275
319,459

-80.1%
-1.9%
0.9%
-16.7%

73,991
272,529
36,951
383,471

635,140

1.8%

624,118

-1.3%

632,623

10,532
123,750
769,422

-100.0%
-3.5%
7.2%
2.4%

1,000
10,917
115,393
751,428

-9.2%
2.4%
17.4%
1.2%

1,101
10,661
98,326
742,711
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$

% Change

$

$

$

146,073
88,106
892,003
1,126,182

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
In fiscal year ended 2014, noncurrent assets decreased by $4 million primarily due to the use of
bond proceeds. The increase in unrestricted net position of $8 million is a result of revenues
from sewer impact fees and other revenues. In fiscal year ended 2013, noncurrent assets
decreased by $66 million primarily due to the use of bond proceeds. The bond proceeds were
used mainly for the final payment to the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District for the
Goethe Building capital lease. The increase in unrestricted net position of $17 million is a result
of positive operating income and intergovernmental revenue
The largest portion of the District’s net position (83% and 83% at June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, structures and improvements,
equipment, and construction in progress), less any related debt still outstanding used to acquire
those assets. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to customers;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
Another portion of the District’s net position (1% and 2% at June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively) represent restricted resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they
may be used. The remaining amount (16% and 15% at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively)
may be used to meet the District’s ongoing obligations to customers and creditors.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
The following table summarizes the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2014, 2013, and 2012:
Changes in Net Position
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

%
Change

2014
Operating revenues:
Sewer service fees
Other

$

Nonoperating revenues:
Interest income
Other, net
Total revenues

96,566
3,404

2013

0.8% $
-14.9%

95,825
4,001

%
Change

2012

-0.2% $
5.0%

95,989
3,812

511
2,208
102,689

-35.2%
-8.5%
-0.3%

789
2,412
103,027

-54.7%
0.4%
-0.9%

1,743
2,403
103,947

Operating expenses:
County labor - water quality
Depreciation and amortization
Billing
Other operating expenses
Nonoperating expenses:
Interest expense
Other, net
Total expenses

36,835
34,181
1,146
31,697

4.6%
2.1%
100.0%
34.4%

35,216
33,481
23,578

6.1%
8.7%
-100.0%
11.9%

33,203
30,797
429
21,063

13,841
923
118,623

-13.6%
42.9%
8.9%

16,011
646
108,932

0.0%
-53.8%
5.9%

16,011
1,397
102,900

Income (loss) before Capital
Contributions

(15,934)

169.8%

(5,905)

-664.0%

1,047

31,632
2,296
33,928

120.1%
811.1%
132.0%

14,370
252
14,622

36.9%
-93.9%
0.0%

10,495
4,123
14,618

17,994
751,428
769,422

106.4%

8,717
742,711
751,428

-44.4%

15,665
727,046
$ 742,711

Capital Contributions:
Pipe from developers
Sewer impact fees
Total Capital Contributions
Increase (decrease) in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

$

$

Total operating revenues, which consist of sewer service fees and other revenues, increased
approximately $144 thousand and $25 thousand in 2013-14 and 2012-13, respectively. In
2013-14, there was no significant growth in the number of customers served or an increase in
service fees. In 2012-13, there was no significant growth in the number of customers served or
an increase in service fees.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
Interest revenue decreased by approximately $278 thousand in 2013-14 due to a decrease in
interest rates over the prior year. Interest revenue decreased by approximately $1 million in
2012-13 due to a decrease in interest rates over the prior year Other non-operating revenues
did not change significantly in 2012-13 compared to the 2011-12 year. The majority of the
revenue is derived from the Build America Bond subsidy and has remained the same over the
past three years.
Effective February 23, 2013, the District changed the amount charged for impact fees. Sewer
impact fees for the “relief” area decreased from $2,000 per ESD to $420 per ESD. Sewer
impact fees for “expansion” areas decreased from $2,500 per ESD to $2,282 per ESD. These
reductions are the result of a change in the methodology for calculating impact fees resulting
from the District’s Rate and Fee Study. Sewer impact fees increased by 1,316% in 2013-14 as
a result of there being an increase in the amount of building permits. Sewer impact fees
decreased by 94% in 2012-13 as a result of there being a decrease in the amount of building
permits issued and the reduced rate charge for impact fees.
In 2013-14 total expenses increased by approximately $10 million. The primary reason for this
increase was $2 million in higher labor costs, $1 million in higher depreciation expense, $4
million in higher pipeline maintenance costs, $2 million increase in consulting costs, $1 million
increase in billing costs and $1 million increase in data processing. The increases were offset
by a $3 million decrease in other nonoperating expenses. In 2012-13 total expenses increased
by approximately $6 million. The primary reason for this increase was $2 million in higher labor
costs, $3 million in higher depreciation expense, $2 million in higher pipeline maintenance costs
and offset by a $1 million decrease in other nonoperating expenses.
Total capital contributions increased by $19 million during the 2013-14 year as compared to the
prior year. Pipe from developers increased by $17 million and sewer impact fees increased by
$2 million. Total capital contributions remained consistent during the 2012-13 year as
compared to the prior year. Pipe from developers increased by $4 million and was offset by a
decrease of $4 million in sewer impact fees.
CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT ACTIVITY
Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation, totaled $896 and $885 million at June 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively. This corresponded to an increase of $10 million for the year
ended June 30, 2014 and a decrease of $7 million for the year ended June 30, 2013. The
following table summarizes the changes in capital assets for the fiscal years ended 2014, 2013,
and 2012:
Changes in Capital Assets
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

2014
Land
Software, structures,
improvements and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

$

9,257

1,250,558
46,312
(410,824)
$
895,303

-7-

%
Change
-0.1% $

2013
9,262

3.4%
1,208,928
2.4%
45,244
8.7%
(377,972)
1.1% $ 885,462

%
Change
0.1% $

2012
9,257

3.3%
1,170,823
-25.3%
60,541
8.4%
(348,618)
-0.7% $ 892,003

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
In 2013-14, construction in progress increased by $1 million due to $12 million in additions
offset by $11 million in completion of ongoing projects. When completed projects are placed
into service, they are transferred to structures, improvements, and equipment. Software,
structures, improvements and equipment increased by $42 million. $11 million of the increase
was due to the completion of projects formerly recorded as construction in progress, $32 million
increase was due to contributed capital and the remaining amount of the increase was from
current year construction activity. This was offset by $1 million in disposed capital assets. In
2012-13, construction in progress decreased by $15 million due to $10 million in additions offset
by $25 million in completion of ongoing projects. Software, structures, improvements and
equipment increased by $38 million. Most of the increase was due to the completion of $25
million in projects formerly recorded as construction in progress.
Additional information on capital assets can be found in the Note 3 to the basic financial
statements included in this report.
Long-term obligations totaled $270 and $275 million at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
These amounts were comprised of loan payable to financing authority, capital leases and
compensated absences.
Summary of Outstanding Long-term Obligations
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Loan payable to Financing Authority
Capital lease
Compensated absences

$

$

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
2014
2013
2012
267,480
$
272,529
$
277,403
59,240
2,476
2,439
2,309
269,956
$
274,968
$
338,952

The decrease in long-term debt in 2013-14 was primarily due to $5 million in scheduled debt
service payments. The decrease in long-term debt in 2012-13 was primarily due to $5 million in
scheduled debt service payments and a $59 million final payment on the Goethe Building capital
lease.
Additional information on long-term debt obligations can be found in the Note 4 to the basic
financial statements included in this report.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all
those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in the report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Joseph T. Maestretti, Chief
Financial Officer, Sacramento Area Sewer District, 10060 Goethe Rd, Sacramento, CA 95827,
or phone (916) 876-6116.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
2014
ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and investments
Sewer services fees receivable
Due from local governments
Interest receivable
Taxes receivable
Other
Inventories

$

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted cash and investments
Deposits with others
Capital assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Software
Structures and improvements
Equipment
Total capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

154,407,621
12,723,160

2013

$

146,777,532
14,018,616

639,938
984,573

809,613
333,504
382,503
946,723

168,755,292

163,268,491

17,848,606
-

22,103,320
54,102

9,257,261
46,312,385
1,849,229
1,238,667,293
10,041,667
1,306,127,835
(410,824,485)

9,262,261
45,243,168
1,849,229
1,197,697,454
9,381,460
1,263,433,572
(377,971,774)

895,303,350

885,461,798

913,151,956

907,619,220

1,081,907,248

1,070,887,711

2,247,650
2,105,708
5,934,324
371,489
5,233,989

910,973
2,359,709
5,996,183
365,778
22,735
5,048,989

15,893,160

14,704,367

30,267,688
2,105,104
1,973,418
262,246,283

33,134,903
2,072,745
2,067,117
267,480,273

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

296,592,493

304,755,038

TOTAL LIABILITIES

312,485,653

319,459,405

635,140,183
10,531,501
123,749,911

624,118,669
999,589
10,917,186
115,392,862

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Warrants payable
Accounts and retentions payable
Interest payable
Compensated absences
Due to local governments
Current portion of loan payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Developer reimbursement payable
Compensated absences
Due to local governments
Long-term obligations

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital construction
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

$

769,421,595

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$

751,428,306

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
2014
OPERATING REVENUES:
Sewer service fees
Other revenue

$

Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
County labor - SDA
Office equipment
Depreciation and amortization
Services and supplies
Consultants
County labor - other
Chemicals
Billing
Pipeline maintenance
Insurance
Utilities
Electricity
Data processing
Total operating expenses
Operating Income (loss)

96,565,734
3,404,320

2013

$

95,825,402
4,001,462

99,970,054

99,826,864

36,834,704
660,261
34,180,869
1,491,555
5,399,106
2,271,463
426,672
1,146,188
15,564,139
1,226,705
481,150
869,707
3,308,135

35,215,521
503,494
33,481,261
1,246,479
2,834,498
1,793,871
256,370
12,075,207
1,634,435
416,589
855,075
1,963,129

103,860,654

92,275,929

(3,890,600)

7,550,935

510,982
(13,840,761)
2,208,248
(923,112)

789,443
(16,011,407)
2,411,714
(645,425)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

(12,044,643)

(13,455,675)

Income (loss) before capital contributions

(15,935,243)

(5,904,740)

31,632,360
2,296,172

14,369,952
252,364

33,928,532

14,622,316

Change in net position

17,993,289

8,717,576

Net position, beginning of year

751,428,306

742,710,730

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest revenue
Interest expense
Intergovernmental revenue
Other expense

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:
Pipe from developers
Sewer impact fees
Total capital contributions

Net position, end of year

$

769,421,595

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$

751,428,306

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from others
Payments to County for labor force
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments to others
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal payments on long-term debt
Interest payments on long-term debt
Build America Bond interest subsidy
Sewer impact fees collected
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

97,861,190
4,078,005
(39,184,531)
(29,274,791)
(2,251,271)
31,228,602

2013
$

(14,129,017)
(4,635,000)
(14,316,609)
2,250,570
2,296,172
(28,533,884)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received

(7,648,161)
(63,699,521)
(16,509,563)
2,444,943
252,364
(85,159,938)

680,657

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

901,728

3,375,375

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

(46,444,074)

161,564,602

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Less long-term investments
Total cash and cash equivalents

208,008,676

$

164,939,977

$

161,564,602

$

154,407,621
17,848,606
(7,316,250)
164,939,977

$

146,777,532
22,103,320
(7,316,250)
161,564,602

$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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96,900,995
4,936,318
(37,929,855)
(21,320,331)
(4,772,991)
37,814,136

$

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014
RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES TO OPERATING INCOME:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Other expense
Intergovernmental expense
Change in assets and liabilities:
Sewer service fees receivable
Due from local governments - taxes
Due from local governments - other
Inventories
Warrants payable
Due to local governments
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

$

(3,890,600)

$

7,550,935

34,180,869
(2,306,900)
(42,322)

33,481,261
(4,386,953)
(33,229)

1,295,456
333,504
382,503
(37,850)
1,336,677
(22,735)
31,228,602

$

1,075,593
(245,190)
1,213,275
24,673
440,272
(1,306,501)
37,814,136

$

14,369,952

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Pipe contributed by developers
$
31,632,360
Acquisition of capital assets with accounts
and retentions payable
(2,105,708)
Acquisition of capital assets with
developer reimbursement payable
(30,267,688)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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2013

(2,359,709)
(33,134,903)

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity
The District is a political subdivision of the State of California. The District is governed by a
Board of Directors comprised of the five members of the Sacramento County Board of
Supervisors, plus one representative each from the Sacramento, Folsom, Citrus Heights, Elk
Grove and Rancho Cordova city councils. Each city representative is selected by their
respective city council to serve on the District board. The length of appointment is subject to the
discretion of each city council, but can be no longer than the individual’s term of office.
In October 1993, the District entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement organized
under Section 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code with the Sacramento Regional
County Sanitation District (SRCSD) to form the Sacramento County Sanitation Districts
Financing Authority (Financing Authority) for the purpose of facilitating the financing of
acquisition and/or constructing of real and personal property in and for the District and SRCSD.
The Board of Directors of SRCSD serves as the Financing Authority’s governing board. For
financial reporting purposes, the Financing Authority and SRCSD have a financial and
operational relationship which requires that the Financing Authority’s financial statements be
blended into SRCSD’s financial statements. This includes reporting SASD’s portion of debt.
SASD makes base payments to the Financing Authority that are at least equal to the required
debt service. SASD recognizes its relationship with the Financing Authority as a related entity.
Separate financial statements for the Financing Authority are available from the District at 10060
Goethe Road, Sacramento CA, 95827, upon request.
The accompanying basic financial statements of the Sacramento Area Sewer District (District)
have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as applicable to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles.
Budgetary Process
The District prepares an annual operating and capital budget, which is approved and adopted
by the Board of Directors. The budget serves as an approved plan to facilitate financial control
and operational evaluation.
California state law does not require formal adoption of
appropriated budgets for enterprise funds.
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The District uses the accounting principles applicable to enterprise funds. The District uses an
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred, regardless of the timing
of related cash flows.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the District’s operations. The principal operating revenues
of the District are customer service charges for sewer services. The principal operating
expenses of the District are county labor, maintenance, services and supplies, and depreciation.
Non-operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related
to financing and investing activities and result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary
activities. The principal non-operating revenue is intergovernmental revenue, which relates to
transactions between the County of Sacramento (the County), the Sacramento County Regional
Sanitation District and the federal government for the Build America Bond subsidy. Significant
non-operating expenses include interest expense paid on the Districts’ outstanding loans with
the Financing Authority. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it
is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first.
Cash Equivalents and Investments
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the District considers all short-term highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of one year or less, including restricted cash and
investments, to be cash equivalents. Amounts held in the County’s investment pool are
available on demand to individual entities; thus, they are considered highly liquid and cash
equivalents for purposes of the statements of cash flows. Investments are presented at fair
value based on quoted market information obtained from fiscal agents or other sources, except
for the guaranteed investment contracts which is presented at cost.
Receivables
The District does not accrue an allowance for doubtful accounts on the sewer service fees as
the District writes off uncollectible accounts and transfers past due amounts to the County to be
placed on the property tax roll for collection. In addition, the District participates in the County’s
Teeter tax buyout plan whereby the County remits 100% of any delinquent amounts to the
District.
Inventories
Inventory is valued at cost, which approximates fair value, using the weighted average method.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Capital Assets
Capital assets are stated at historical cost. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of,
the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the basic financial statements.
Any gain or loss from the retirement or disposal of an asset is reflected in the statements of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the period. Depreciation/amortization is
provided on each asset using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:
Software
Equipment
Structures and improvements

5 years
5 to 35 years
40 to 100 years

District policy is to capitalize all land and to capitalize all other assets with a cost greater than
$20,000 and a useful life of more than one year. The exception is light vehicles and software,
which has a capitalization threshold of $15,000 and $100,000 respectively.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Significant additions or
improvements are capitalized and depreciated/amortized over their estimated useful lives.
Costs incurred for major improvements or construction of assets is carried in construction in
progress until the project is completed, at which time costs related to the project are capitalized
in the appropriate asset account. Contributed capital that are received from developers are
recorded at fair value.
Developer Reimbursement Payable
Under the District’s Trunk Reimbursement Program, developers may elect to enter into a
developer reimbursement agreement. Under the agreement, the developer agrees to install
trunks and other facilities on behalf of the District and the District agrees to reimburse the
developer for the agreed upon cost of such facilities; provided that the total reimbursement by
the District to all developers under this program in any year may not exceed funds available for
payment of such reimbursements. In lieu of receiving such reimbursement in the form of a
payment from the District, developers may elect to use the reimbursable amount as a credit
against sewer impact fees that they would otherwise owe to the district. Obligations to
developers who have elected to apply their reimbursement to future sewer impact fees are
reported as developer reimbursement payable on the District’s statements of net position.
Compensated Absences
The District’s labor force are employees of the County. Employees accrue vacation in varying
amounts based on classification and length of service. Additionally, certain employees are
allowed compensated time off in lieu of overtime compensation and/or working on holidays.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Sick leave is earned by regular, full-time employees. Any sick leave hours not used during the
period are carried forward to following years, with no limit to the number of hours that can be
accumulated. Any sick leave hours unused at the time of an employee’s retirement are added to
the actual period of service when computing retirement benefits. Upon retirement, management
employees have the option of receiving payment for one half of accrued sick leave with the
balance included in the calculation of retirement benefits.
It is the policy of the County not to pay accumulated sick leave to employees who terminate
prior to retirement. The liability for compensated absences earned through year-end, but not yet
taken, is accrued in the accompanying financial statements. Compensated absences for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 can be found in Note 4 on long term
obligations.
Risk Management
The District is covered by the County’s insurance policies and participates in the County’s selfinsurance. Annual premiums are based primarily on claims experience and are charged to
expense when paid. During the past three fiscal years, there were no instances of settlements
which exceeded insurance coverage and no significant reductions in insurance coverage. The
following is a summary of the District’s coverage:








General and automobile liability - $25 million limit per occurrence
Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability – $5 million
Pollution Liability - $10 million limit per occurrence
Property - $3.045 billion limit per occurrence
Earthquake - $25 million limit per occurrence
Boiler and machinery - $100 million limit per occurrence
Crime/Dishonesty/Forgery - $10 million limit per occurrence

Capitalization of Interest
Interest costs relating to the acquisition of capital assets are capitalized as a component of the
cost of the capital assets. For the years ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013, the District
incurred interest costs totaling $13,840,761 and $16,011,407. Of these amounts, a portion was
related to the construction and improvements which resulted in capitalized interest. There was
no capitalized interest for the year ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.
Reclassifications
Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative
purposes to conform to the presentation in the current-year financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
New Accounting Pronouncements
GASB Statement No. 66 – In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical
Corrections – 2012 – and amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and 62. The objective of
this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for a governmental financial
reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two
pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained
in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. This Statement is effective for
financial statements ending June 30, 2014. This statement did not have any impact on the
financial statements.
GASB Statement No. 67 – In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting
for Pension Plans – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25. The objective of this Statement
is to improve financial reporting by State and local governmental pension plans. This Statement
replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 50, Pension
Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent
arrangements (hereafter jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria.
The
requirements of Statements No. 25 and No. 50 remain applicable to pension plans that are not
administered through trusts covered by the scope of this Statement and to define contribution
plans that provide postemployment benefits other than pensions. This Statement is effective for
financial statements ending June 30, 2014. This Statement did not have any impact on the
financial statements.
GASB Statement No. 70 – In April 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 70, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. The objective of this Statement is
to improve accounting and financial reporting by State and local governments that extend and
receive nonexchange financial guarantees. The Statement requires a government that extends
a nonexchange financial guarantee to recognize a liability when qualitative factors and historical
data, if any, indicate that it is more likely than not that the government will be required to make a
payment on the guarantee. This Statement is effective for financial statements ending June 30,
2014. This Statement did not have any impact on the financial statements.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
2. CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS
The District maintains specific cash deposits and investments with the County of Sacramento
and participates in the Sacramento County Pooled Investment Fund. At June 30, 2014 and
2013, the carrying amount of the District’s cash and investments held in the fund was
$154,407,621 and $146,777,532, respectively.
The weighted average maturity of the
Treasurer’s cash and investment pool was 293 and 301 days at June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. California Government Code authorizes the Treasurer of the County to invest
excess funds in the following list of eligible securities:
a) Obligations of the State, County or any local agency in the State of California.
b) Obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities.
c) Bankers acceptances eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System.
d) Commercial paper with an A-1 rating by Moody’s Investors Service or a P-1 rating by
Standard and Poor’s Corporation.
e) Repurchase agreements or reverse repurchase agreement.
f)

Medium-term notes with a five-year maximum maturity from corporations operating
within the United States and rated in the top three rating categories by Moody’s
Investment Service and Standard and Poor’s Corporation.

g) Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies (money
market funds) investing in securities and obligations as outlined in a) through e) above.
Certain security rankings and/or organizational requirements apply to this type of
investment.
The County Treasurer’s cash and investment pool is subject to regulatory oversight by the
Treasury Oversight Committee. The value of the pool shares in the County Treasurer’s cash
and investment pool that may be withdrawn is determined on an amortized cost basis, which is
different than the fair value of the District’s position in the pools. The District reports
investments at fair value, with the exception of guaranteed investment contracts, which are
carried at cost.
The County of Sacramento, acting in a fiduciary capacity, segregates and invests the Financing
Authority’s bond proceeds in accordance with long-term obligation covenants. Bond reserves
are held by an outside fiscal agent as required by the bond indentures.
At June 30, 2014 and 2013, all cash held by fiscal agents was covered by federal depository
insurance or by collateral held by the County’s financial institutions in the County’s name.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
2. CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Restricted cash and investments consist of the following at June 30, 2014 and 2013:

2014
Restricted proceeds from debt issues held by:
County Treasurer's cash and investment pool
Investments held by County as Fiscal Agent
Investments held by Financial Institution as
bond trustee
Total restricted cash and investments

$

6,021
10,526,335

2013
$

7,316,250

7,316,250
$

17,848,606

522,833
14,264,237

$

22,103,320

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the District had $7,316,250 in a guaranteed investment contract.
This contract matures on July 21, 2035 and is not rated by credit rating agencies.
Investment of debt proceeds held by the bond trustee is governed by provisions of the debt
agreements rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
District’s investment policy. The following tables identify the investment types that are
authorized for investments held by bond trustee, identifies certain provisions of these debt
agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements
Authorized
Investment Type
Defeasance Securities
U.S. Treasury Obligations
U.S. Agency Securities
U.S. dollar denominate deposit accounts, federal
funds and bankers' acceptances
Commercial Paper
Money Market Fund
Pre-refunded municipal obligations
Municipal Obligations
County of Sacramento Pooled Investment Fund
Investment Agreements
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Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
Allowed

Maximum
Investment
in One Issuer

None
None
None

None
None
None

None
None
None

180 days
270 days
None
None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
None
None

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
2. CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The District’s investments held by
bond trustees are monitored for interest rate risk by measuring the weighted average maturity.
Investment Type
Held by Bond Trustee:
FNMA Discount Notes
FHLB Discount Notes
Mutual Funds
Guaranteed Investment Contract
Total

Fair Value at
June 30, 2014

$

10,526,318
17
7,316,250

Weighted Average
Maturity (in years)

Fair Value at
June 30, 2013

0.07
0.25
21.09

$

2,945,372
11,318,858
7
7,316,250

Weighted Average
Maturity (in years)

0.08
0.12
0.75
22.09

$ 21,580,487

$ 17,842,585

Credit Risk
This is the risk than an issuer or other counterparty to a debt instrument will not fulfill its
obligations. The District is permitted to hold investments of issuers with a short-term rating of
superior capacity and a minimum long-term rating of upper medium grade by the top two
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (rating agencies). For short-term rating, the
issuers’ rating must be A-1 and P-1 and the long-term rating must be A and A2, respectively, by
Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s rating agencies. In addition, the District is permitted to invest in
the State’s Local Agency Investment Fund, collateralized certificate of deposits and notes
issued by the County that are not rated.
Investment Type
Held by Bond Trustee:
FNMA Discount Notes
FHLB Discount Notes
Mutual Funds
Guaranteed Investment Contract
Total

Fair Value at
June 30, 2014

$

10,526,318
17
7,316,250

$ 17,842,585
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Ratings as of
June 30, 2014

P-1/A-1+
Aaa/AAA
Not Rated

Fair Value at
June 30, 2013

$

2,945,372
11,318,858
7
7,316,250

$ 21,580,487

Ratings as of
June 30, 2013

P-1/A-1+
P-1/A-1+
Aaa/AAA
Not Rated

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
2. CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Concentration of Credit Risk
This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single
issuer. Investments in any one issuer that represent five percent or more of the District’s total
investments are shown below as of June 30, 2014 and 2013. Mutual funds are excluded from
this disclosure.

Issuer

Investment Type

June 30, 2014

June 30, 2013

FNMA Discount Notes
FHLB Discount Notes
FSA

Government Securities
Government Securities
Guaranteed Investment Contract

$

$ 2,945,372
11,318,858
7,316,250

10,526,318
7,316,250

Custodial Credit Risk
This is the risk that in the event a financial institution or counterparty fails, the District would not
be able to recover the value of its deposits and investments. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013,
one hundred percent of the District’s investments are held in the County’s name. The District
does not have a policy for custodial credit risk.
At June 30, 2014 and 2013 the District’s bond reserves are in guaranteed investment contracts
issued by FSA Capital Management Services LLC. There is no limitation on amounts invested in
this type of investment. The guaranteed investment contracts are valued at cost.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
3. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:
July 1, 2013
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not
being depreciated
Capital assets being
depreciated:
Structures and improvements
Equipment
Software
Total capital assets being
depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation:
Structures and improvements
Equipment
Software
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net
Net capital assets

$

9,262,261
45,243,168

Increase

$

Capital assets being
depreciated:
Structures and improvements
Equipment
Software
Total capital assets being
depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation:
Structures and improvements
Equipment
Software
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net
Net capital assets

$

(5,000)
(11,090,004)

June 30, 2014

$

9,257,261
46,312,385

54,505,429

12,159,221

(11,095,004)

55,569,646

1,197,697,454
9,381,460
1,849,229

42,022,814
1,040,022
-

(1,052,975)
(379,815)
-

1,238,667,293
10,041,667
1,849,229

1,208,928,143

43,062,836

(1,432,790)

1,250,558,189

(33,219,879)
(591,145)
(369,845)
(34,180,869)

948,344
379,814
1,328,158

(372,904,658)
(3,957,578)
(1,109,538)
(377,971,774)
830,956,369
$ 885,461,798

$

July 1, 2012
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not
being depreciated

12,159,221

Decrease

$

9,257,261
60,541,417

8,881,967
21,041,188

$

Increase

$

5,000
9,825,320

(104,632)
(11,199,636)

(405,176,193)
(4,168,909)
(1,479,383)
(410,824,485)

$

Decrease

$

(25,123,569)

839,733,704
895,303,350
June 30, 2013

$

9,262,261
45,243,168

69,798,678

9,830,320

(25,123,569)

54,505,429

1,161,537,619
7,435,627
1,849,229

36,438,641
2,590,878
-

(278,806)
(645,045)
-

1,197,697,454
9,381,460
1,849,229

1,170,822,475

39,029,519

(923,851)

1,208,928,143

(343,783,604)
(4,094,783)
(739,692)
(348,618,079)

(29,399,860)
(503,968)
(369,846)
(30,273,674)

278,806
641,173
919,979

822,204,396

8,755,845

$ 892,003,074
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$

18,586,165

(372,904,658)
(3,957,578)
(1,109,538)
(377,971,774)

(3,872)
$

(25,127,441)

830,956,369
$

885,461,798

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
3. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Depreciation expense included in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position for fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 totaled $34,180,869 and $30,273,674.
4. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
The Financing Authority issued the 2010 Series Revenue Bonds and the 2005 Series Revenue
Bonds which is reported in the Financing Authority’s financial statements. The District and
Financing Authority entered into a master installment agreement. The District makes loan
payments to the Financing Authority on the 2010 Series Revenue Bonds and the 2005 Series
Revenue Bonds.
2010 Series Revenue Bonds
In August 2010, the Financing Authority issued $110,690,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A
Federally Taxable Direct Subsidy Build America Bonds and $15,930,000 Revenue Bonds,
Series 2010B. The bonds mature serially from August 2011 through August 2040. Interest
rates for the Series A Bonds range from 6.125% to 6.325%, principal payments ranging from
$1,440,000 to $16,175,000 with the first payment starting in 2026 and ending in 2040. Interest
rates for the Series B Bonds range from 2.5% to 5.0%, principal payments ranging from
$820,000 to $1,180,000 with the first payment starting in 2011 and ending in 2021. The
proceeds were used to finance improvements to the collection system to reduce or eliminate
potential sewer overflows, serve new growth, and to purchase capital improvements completed
by SRCSD.
2005 Series Revenue Bonds
In June 2005, the Financing Authority issued the 2005 Series Revenue Bonds in the amount of
$165,620,000 with interest rates ranging from 2.65% to 4.25%, principal payments ranging from
$2,855,000 to $8,750,000 with the first payment starting in 2006 and ending in 2036, net of
premium of $11,266,047. Proceeds from this debt issue were used to advance refund all
outstanding 2000 Revenue Bonds and to finance the acquisition and construction of new
facilities. On June 30, 2014 and 2013, $38,675,000 and $40,090,000 of the 2000 defeased
Revenue Bonds were outstanding, respectively.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
4. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
Maturity Schedule
Future debt service requirements on bonds as of June 30, 2014 are as follows:
Fiscal years ending June 30:
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024
2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2041

$

$

Principal
4,820,000
5,050,000
5,295,000
5,555,000
5,835,000
33,865,000
43,115,000
54,750,000
68,595,000
31,695,000
258,575,000

$

$

Interest
14,130,778
13,902,128
13,657,453
13,395,903
13,116,103
60,885,665
51,499,549
38,708,276
21,056,794
2,025,423
242,378,072

$

$

Total
18,950,778
18,952,128
18,952,453
18,950,903
18,951,103
94,750,665
94,614,549
93,458,276
89,651,794
33,720,423
500,953,072

Pursuant to the Indenture with the County and Union Bank of California, N.A., as trustee, and
the Master Installment Purchase Contract between the Financing Authority and the District, the
District is required to faithfully perform and abide by all of the covenants, undertakings, and
provisions of the above agreement so long as any of the bonds are outstanding. Specific
covenants include the following:


Punctual payment of interest and principal will be made when due.



Proceeds of the bonds will be used by the District, as agent for the Financing Authority,
to pay the costs of financing the acquisition and construction (together with the incidental
costs and expenses related thereto) of the Projects approved by the Board of Directors.



Rates, fees, and charges will be fixed and collected at least sufficient to yield adjusted
annual net revenues, as defined, equal to at least the amount required by the coverage
requirement for the fiscal year.

For the fiscal years ended 2014 and 2013, the District was in compliance with the preceding
covenants.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
4. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
Changes in long-term obligations for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:
Balance

Balance

July 1, 2013
Loan Payable to Financing Authority

$

263,210,000

Plus premium

9,319,262

Compensated absences

2,438,523
$

274,967,785

Increase
$

-

Decrease
$

403,848
$

403,848

$

(4,635,000)

$ 258,575,000

(413,989)

8,905,273

(365,778)

2,476,593

(5,414,767)

$ 269,956,866

Balance

Balance

July 1, 2012
Loan Payable to Financing Authority

$

267,670,000

Increase
$

-

Decrease
$

9,319,262

9,733,251

-

(413,989)

59,239,521

-

(59,239,521)

2,309,058
$

338,951,830

$

4,820,000
413,989
371,489

$

5,605,478

Due Within

$ 263,210,000

Capital lease

One Year
$

June 30, 2013

(4,460,000)

Plus premium
Compensated absences

Due Within

June 30, 2014

One Year
$

4,635,000
413,989

-

475,824

(346,359)

2,438,523

475,824

$ (64,459,869)

$ 274,967,785

365,778
$

5,414,767

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
For fiscal years 2013-14 and 2012-13, the County paid the District $170,560 and $793,475,
respectively, for interest earned on Treasury deposits. The District’s labor force are employees
of the County and the District uses other County departments for other services, such as risk
management, engineering, accounting, utility billing, etc. Expenses paid to the County during
fiscal years 2013-14 and 2012-13 were $48,515,611 and $45,895,894, respectively.
In addition, for the fiscal years 2013-14 and 2012-13, the District paid the Financing Authority
$18,951,609 and $18,951,841 respectively for debt service.
6. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION
In July 2010, the District entered into a Lease to Purchase Agreement with the Sacramento
Regional County Sanitation District (SRCSD) for the Goethe Road Building and Corporation
Yard in the amount of $60,900,000. The terms of the lease are for three years with annual
payments due on June 30 in the amount of $2,900,000 with an option to purchase at the end of
the agreement. Funding of the purchase was provided from proceeds of the Series 2010 Bond.
The total purchase price entitled the District to an 80% undivided fee interest in the property with
the final 20% remaining with SRCSD. The final payment of the lease was paid in June 2013
and the District exercised the option to purchase the building. The District paid $61,257,136 on
the lease which consisted of $59,239,521 of principal and $2,017,615 in interest.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The District has entered into contracts for the construction of certain projects. At June 30, 2014
and 2013, the unexpended balance of the contract commitments was $2,440,892 and
$5,312,589, respectively.
The District is a defendant in various matters of litigation. Of these matters, management and
the District’s legal counsel do not anticipate any material effect on the June 30, 2014 and 2013
basic financial statements.
8. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
(a)
Plan Description
The District’s labor force are employees of the County. For certain retired employees, the
County provides a subsidy towards medical insurance and dental insurance.
These
subsidy/offset payments are authorized by the Board of Supervisors on an annual basis. The
Board of Supervisors must approve the benefit annually or it is terminated.
All annuitants are eligible to enroll in a retiree medical and/or dental insurance plan in a given
calendar year if (1) they began receiving a continuing retirement allowance from Sacramento
County Employees Retirement System (SCERS) during that calendar year, or (2) they were
enrolled in the annual plan previously approved by the County, or (3) they previously waived
coverage but elected to enroll during the County authorized enrollment period with a coverage
date effective January of the given calendar year (continuous coverage).
Annuitants who retired for any reason on or before May 31, 2007 are eligible to receive a
County-paid medical or dental insurance subsidy/offset payment during calendar year 2008 and
thereafter. Annuitants who retire after May 31, 2007 are not entitled to any subsidy/offset
payment.
The amount of subsidy/offset payments for the calendar year 2014 and 2013 ranged from $40
to $244 depending upon the years of service credit. The amount of any medical subsidy/offset
payments made available to annuitants (who retire on or before May 31, 2007) shall be
calculated based upon the annuitant’s SCERS service credit. The amount of any dental
subsidy/offset payments made available to annuitants shall be set by the Board of Supervisors.
Neither Sacramento County Employees’ Retirement System (SCERS) nor the County
guarantees that a subsidy/offset payment will be made available to retirees for the purchase of
County-sponsored medical and/or dental insurance. Subsidy/offset payments are not a vested
benefit of County employment or SCERS membership.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
8. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
(b)
Funding Policy
The District currently pays for post employment health benefits on a pay-as-you go basis.
These financial statements assume that pay-as-you-go funding will continue.
(c)
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation at June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were as
follows:

2014
Annual required contribution
ARC adjustment
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year
Net OPEB obligation, end of year

$

303,908
(23,701)
20,158
300,365
(115,901)
184,464
518,758
$ 703,222

2013
$

260,205
(27,107)
16,938
250,036
(167,311)
82,725
436,033
$ 518,758

2012
$

279,077
(17,669)
16,159
277,567
(207,913)
69,654
366,379
$ 436,033

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the District’s annual OPEB cost was $300,365.
Contributions of $115,901 were equal to the pay-as-you-go amount and represented 38.6% of
the annual OPEB cost. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the District’s annual OPEB
cost was $250,036. Contributions of $167,311 were equal to the pay-as-you-go amount and
represented 66.9% of the annual OPEB cost. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the
District’s annual OPEB cost was $277,567. Contributions of $207,913 were equal to the payas-you-go amount and represented 74.9% of the annual OPEB cost.
The net OPEB obligation is owed to the County and the District reports the obligation in the
financial statement as Noncurrent due to other local governments.
Additional details, actuarial assumptions, funded status of the plan and required supplementary
information can be found in the County of Sacramento Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
9. DEFINED PENSION BENEFIT PLAN
All full-time employees of the District participate in the Sacramento County Employees’
Retirement System (Retirement System), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
public employee retirement system. A separate stand-alone report for the Retirement System
may be obtained from the County Department of Finance. The payroll expense for District
employees covered by the Retirement System for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and
2013 was $19,716,703 and $18,728,335 respectively. The District’s total payroll expense for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $21,500,543 and $20,672,336 respectively.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013
9. DEFINED PENSION BENEFIT PLAN (Continued)
Retirement benefits are based on member years of service and compensation. Additionally, the
Retirement System provides for benefits upon death or disability of eligible members. Upon
reaching five years of service, members have earned the right to receive a retirement benefit,
subject to certain restrictions if retirement is prior to attaining age 50 or less than 10 years
service has been achieved.
Under the actuarial funding method used by the Retirement System, investments are at fair
value and all unrealized gains and losses are recognized over the next five years. Therefore,
contribution rates reflect the impact of market fluctuations of investments during the five-year
period after they occur.
Member contributions are required by law.
Member contribution rates are actuarially
determined and are based on age of entry into the system. Fund contributions are actuarially
determined to provide for the balance of contributions needed. The Retirement Board adopts a
rate based on the actuary’s recommendation. The rate is then forwarded to the Board of
Supervisors for their information and adoption for budget purposes. The Financing Authority for
both benefit provisions and contributions obligations is derived from the County Employees
Retirement Act of 1937, Section 31450 et seq. of the California Government Code.
The contribution requirement for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $3,954,790 that consisted
of $2,909,899 from the District and $1,044,891 from its employees; these contributions
represent 14.76 percent and 5.30 percent, respectively, of covered payroll. The contribution
requirement for the year ended June 30, 2013 was $3,515,920 that consisted of $2,533,898
from the District and $982,022 from its employees; these contributions represent 13.53 percent
and 5.24 percent, respectively, of covered payroll.
The following table shows the District’s required contribution (annual pension cost) and the
percentage contributed for the current year and each of the two preceding years:

Fiscal Year

Annual Pension
Cost (APC)

Percentage of APC
Contributed

2013-14

$

2,909,899

100%

2012-13

$

2,533,898

100%

2011-12

$

2,383,806

100%
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STATISTICAL SECTION

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Sacramento, California
Statistical Section
For the fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Index to Statistical Section
This part of the Sacramento Area Sewer District’s comprehensive annual financial report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says about the
District’s overall financial health.
Contents
Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the District’s
financial performance has changed over time:
 Net Position by Component – Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
 Changes in Net Position - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
 Operating Revenues by Source - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
 Operating Expenses - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
 Non-operating Revenues and Expenses - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
 Capital Contributions - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the
District’s ability to generate its sewer service fees:
 Wastewater Collected and Conveyed - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
 Number of Customers by Type - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
 Sewer Rates - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
 Ten Largest Customers – Fiscal Years 2014 and 2005
Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the District’s
current level of outstanding debt and its ability to issue additional debt in the future:
 Pledged Revenue Coverage - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
 Net Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules present demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
the environment within which the District’s financial activities take place:
 Demographic and Economic Statistics - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
 Principal Employers - Fiscal Years 2014 and 2005
Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure information to help the reader understand
how the information in the District’s financial report relates to the services the District provides
and the activities it performs:
 Number of Employees by Identifiable Activity - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 20132014
 Operating and Capital Indicators - Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Net Position by Component
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 1

Restricted
Fiscal
Year
2014
2013
2012 1
2011 1

Net Investment
in Capital
Assets
$

635,140,183
624,118,669
632,622,714
669,164,254

Capital
Construction
$

999,589
1,100,748
372,573

Debt
Service
$

Unrestricted

Total Net
Position

10,531,501
10,917,186
10,661,071
10,730,881

$ 123,749,911
115,392,862
98,326,197
46,777,902

$ 769,421,595
751,428,306
742,710,730
727,045,610

2010

651,455,187

2,911,431

14,186,289

15,466,826

684,019,733

2009

639,419,942

13,662,473

13,998,009

1,395,021

668,475,445

2008

648,520,639

8,685,092

8,126,284

(13,960,943)

651,371,072

2007

539,929,051

6,794,901

7,178,907

17,761,170

571,664,029

2006

452,320,674

3,280,356

6,642,927

25,623,957

487,867,914

2005

392,813,849

28,148

-

44,581,392

437,423,389

Note 1:

Fiscal year 2011 and 2012 have been revised in accordance with the implementation
guidance in GASB Statement No. 65 Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.
Prior years have not been restated as permitted by the standard.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Changes in Net Position
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 2

Operating

Nonoperating

Fiscal

Operating

Operating

Income

Revenues

Capital

in Net

Beginning

Ending

Year

Revenues

Expenses

(Loss)

(Expenses)

Contributions

Position

Net Position

Net Position

$ 99,970,054
99,826,864
99,801,183
98,313,027
90,296,524
83,983,625
69,567,747
62,458,198
54,103,550
51,855,940

$ 103,860,654
92,275,929
85,491,988
85,476,487
82,912,961
88,508,836
73,726,947
62,345,478
56,163,422
50,093,107

$ (3,890,600)
7,550,935
14,309,195
12,836,540
7,383,563
(4,525,211)
(4,159,200)
112,720
(2,059,872)
1,762,833

$ (12,044,643)
(13,455,675)
(13,262,552)
(4,445,112)
(691,345)
(8,196)
(8,656,336)
1,408,427
(906,179)
(1,340,676)

$ 17,993,289
8,717,576
15,665,120
49,393,755
15,544,288
17,104,373
79,707,043
83,796,115
50,444,525
85,616,255

$ 751,428,306
742,710,730
727,045,610
677,651,855
668,475,445
651,371,072
571,664,029
487,867,914
437,423,389
351,807,134

$ 769,421,595
751,428,306
742,710,730
727,045,610
684,019,733
668,475,445
651,371,072
571,664,029
487,867,914
437,423,389

2014
2013
2012 2
2011 2
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005 1

Change

$

33,928,532
14,622,316
14,618,477
41,002,327
8,852,070
21,637,780
92,522,579
82,274,968
53,410,576
85,194,098

Note 1: Since 2005, the District classified sewer impact fees as capital contributions;
previous years were classified as operating revenues. In addition, since 2005,
the District classified "other revenues" as operating revenues; previous years
were classified as non-operating revenues/expenses.
Note

2:

Fiscal year 2011 and 2012 have been revised in accordance with the
implementation guidance in GASB Statement No. 65 Items Previously Reported
as Assets and Liabilities . Prior years have not been restated as permitted by the
standard.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Operating Revenues by Source
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 3

Fiscal

Sewer

Other

Total
Operating

Year

Service Fees

Revenue

Revenues

2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

$ 96,565,734
95,825,402
95,988,816
94,813,872
83,516,003
71,057,207
67,271,350
60,620,812
53,528,389
49,596,891

$

3,404,320
4,001,462
3,812,367
3,499,155
6,780,521
12,926,418
2,296,397
1,837,386
575,161
2,259,049
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$

99,970,054
99,826,864
99,801,183
98,313,027
90,296,524
83,983,625
69,567,747
62,458,198
54,103,550
51,855,940

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Operating Expenses
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 4

Labor Force
Fiscal
Year

Water
Quality

Other

2014
2013
2012 1
2011 1
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

$ 36,834,704
35,215,521
33,203,007
33,648,768
30,587,779
29,325,535
21,130,174
27,809,479
24,904,123
20,568,885

$ 2,271,463
1,793,871
1,760,272
1,760,526
2,195,639
2,803,425
3,355,171
1,327,998
1,561,164
1,437,713

Note 1:

Utilities

Total

Depreciation
and
Amortization

Electricity

Other

$ 39,106,167
37,009,392
34,963,279
35,409,294
32,783,418
32,128,960
24,485,345
29,137,477
26,465,287
22,006,598

$ 34,180,869
33,481,261
30,797,283
29,331,096
27,408,014
26,719,428
24,652,503
21,954,788
19,301,332
15,510,609

$ 869,707
855,075
799,864
899,408
717,571
619,699
452,439
455,228
363,382
311,306

$ 481,150
416,589
450,815
499,617
539,142
780,450
873,791
214,666
218,792
298,678

Fiscal year 2012 and 2011 has been revised in accordance with
the implementation guidance in GASB Statement No. 65 Items
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Prior years have
not been restated as permitted by the standard.
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Total
$

1,350,857
1,271,664
1,250,679
1,399,025
1,256,713
1,400,149
1,326,230
669,894
582,174
609,984

Services
and
Supplies
$ 1,491,555
1,246,479
1,476,071
1,328,513
2,667,492
4,184,202
4,435,300
1,062,677
1,734,911
3,579,192

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Operating Expenses (Continued)
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 4

Billing

Pipeline
Maintenance

$ 1,146,188
429,177
1,414,128
2,023,470
2,092,691
2,689,215
2,709,007
2,573,102
2,663,531

$ 15,564,139
12,075,207
9,979,224
9,215,748
8,905,808
10,514,505
6,549,433
2,177,175
1,895,198
2,093,897

Data
Processing
$

3,308,135
1,963,129
1,587,138
2,084,978
1,325,874
1,067,562
1,005,425
1,052,653
964,949
467,504

Office
Equipment

Consultants

Chemicals

$ 660,261
503,494
482,019
548,004
273,865
307,551
459,761
299,182
462,177
813,507

$ 5,399,106
2,834,498
2,837,442
3,473,699
3,974,067
5,750,984
3,459,190
1,796,348
1,408,490
1,518,317

$ 426,672
256,370
167,501
34,920
313,310
292,118
287,276
268,444
253,657
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Total
Operating
Expenses

Insurance
$

1,226,705
1,634,435
1,522,175
1,237,082
1,980,930
4,342,804
4,372,427
1,199,001
507,358
576,311

$

103,860,654
92,275,929
85,491,988
85,476,487
82,912,961
88,508,836
73,726,947
62,345,478
56,163,422
50,093,107

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Non-operating Revenues and Expenses
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 5

Fiscal

Interest

Interest

Intergovernmental
Revenue

Year

Expense

Income

(Expense)

2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

$ (13,840,761)
(16,011,407)
(16,010,762)
(8,860,822)
(2,369)
(287,314)
(5,108,172)
(529,750)

$

510,982
789,443
1,743,221
1,249,327
454,205
741,153
1,503,998
3,475,325
6,125,873
1,447,004

$

2,208,248
2,411,714
2,402,439
3,471,743
356,611
(19,303)
(7,267,272)
(1,132,523)
(172,349)
(1,325,985)

Arbitrage
Rebate
Revenue

Other

(Expense)

Expenses

$

464,832
(52,936)
(411,896)
-

$

(923,112)
(645,425)
(1,397,450)
(305,360)
(1,499,792)
(1,194,878)
(2,840,126)
(235,165)
(1,751,531)
(931,945)

1
Note : "Other revenues" for all years have been reclassified to operating revenues to conform
to 2006 presentation.
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Total
Non-operating
Revenues
(Expenses) 1
$

(12,044,643)
(13,455,675)
(13,262,552)
(4,445,112)
(691,345)
(8,196)
(8,656,336)
1,408,427
(906,179)
(1,340,676)

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Capital Contributions
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 6

Fiscal

Pipe From

Sewer
Impact

Year

Developers

Fees

2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

$ 31,632,360
14,369,952
10,494,903
21,890,680
8,200,178
19,949,586
89,145,269
73,260,361
42,243,987
74,271,454

$

2,296,172
252,364
4,123,574
1,059,508
651,892
1,688,194
3,377,310
9,014,607
11,166,589
10,922,644
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Other
Capital

Total
Capital

Contributions

Contributions

$

$ 33,928,532
14,622,316
14,618,477
41,002,327
8,852,070
21,637,780
92,522,579
82,274,968
53,410,576
85,194,098

18,052,139
-

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Wastewater Collected and Conveyed
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 7

Fiscal
Year
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

Connected
Equivalent
Single-Family
Dwelling (ESD)
404,647
402,705
401,405
400,178
399,298
396,800
393,864
386,071
377,979
367,493

Monthly
Sewer
Rate
per ESD
$ 19.85
19.85
19.85
19.85
17.50
15.00
14.00
13.00
11.50
11.50

Source: ESD - Chief Financial Officer's Billing Report
District Sewer Rate Ordinances
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Number of Customers by Type
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 8

Fiscal
Year

Residential
ESD's

2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

360,111
358,650
357,721
356,158
399,298
396,800
393,864
386,071
377,979
367,493

Commercial
ESD's

Total ESD's 2

Industrial
Flow
Customers

404,647
402,705
401,305
400,178
399,298
396,800
393,864
386,071
377,979
367,493

64
62
66
54
59
55
51
51
49
48

1

44,536
44,055
43,584
44,020
-

Source: Customer billing records
Note 1: FY2004 - FY2010 Commercial is incorporated with the Residential totals as
data is unavailable for these fiscal years
Note 2: Total ESD's for Residential and Commercial is not the total number of
customers by type since many customers have multiple types of ESD's
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Total
404,711
402,767
401,371
400,232
399,357
396,855
393,915
386,122
378,028
367,541

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Sewer Rates
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 9

2014
Residential Rates 1:
Operations and
Maintenance
Rehabilitation 4
Trunk 4
Total
Industrial Rates 3:
Fixed Amount
Per Million Gallons
Per Thousand Lbs SS 2

2013

2012

2011

Fiscal Year
2010
2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

$15.56 $13.46 $13.15 $13.15 $13.30 $10.80
$9.80
$9.55
$9.30
$9.30
4.29
6.39
6.70
6.70
4.20
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
2.70
2.70
1.95
0.70
0.70
$19.85 $19.85 $19.85 $19.85 $17.50 $15.00 $14.00 $13.00 $11.50 $11.50

$7.16
72.73
5.10

$7.16
72.73
5.10

$7.16
72.73
5.10

$7.16
72.73
5.10

$7.16
72.73
5.10

$7.16
72.73
5.10

$7.16
72.73
5.10

$7.16
72.73
5.10

Source: District ordinances

Notes 1: Monthly rate at June 30 per equivalent single-family dwelling (ESD).
Notes 2: SS=Suspended Solids.
Notes 3: Industrial rates are based on flow (millions of gallons) per thousands of pounds of BOD
(Biochemical Oxygen Demand) and SS.
Notes 4: Combined Rehabilitation and Trunk into Rehabilitation only - 07/01/2009.
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$7.16
72.73
5.10

$7.16
72.73
5.10

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Ten Largest Customers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
Schedule 10
Fiscal Year 2014
Service Fees 1
Customer
Sacramento County Airport System
$
147,532
Procter and Gamble Manufacturing
33,602
City of Sacramento, EA Fairbairn WTP
29,945
H.P. Hood, LLC
19,225
Aerojet Commercial
15,210
Huhtamaki Food Services, Inc.
11,958
Rio Cosumnes Correctional Center
9,866
Air Products Manufacturing Co
7,901
Mission Linen Supply
6,730
Raging Waters, Sacramento
5,135

%
0.15%
0.03%
0.03%
0.02%
0.02%
0.01%
0.01%
0.01%
0.01%
0.01%

Subtotal (10 largest)

287,104

0.30%

96,278,630

99.70%

$ 96,565,734

100.00%

Fiscal Year 2005
Service Fees 1
Customer
Campbell Soup Company
$
54,240
Huhtamaki Food Services, Inc.
23,169
Proctor-Gamble Manufacturing
18,130
Crystal Belvedere
6,790
Mission Industries
5,470
Rio Consumnes Correctional Center
5,402
Aramark Uniform Services, Inc.
4,472
Sacramento Power Authority
2,520
Golden State Services
2,359
Pepsi-Cola Bottling Co., Inc.
2,295

%
0.11%
0.05%
0.04%
0.01%
0.01%
0.01%
0.01%
0.01%
0.00%
0.00%

Subtotal (10 largest)

124,847

0.25%

49,543,683

99.75%

$ 49,668,530

100.00%

Balance from other customers
Grand totals

Balance from other customers
Grand totals

Note 1: Amount includes base rate charges, as well as multiple
meters on various accounts.
Source: Annual customer billing records, from Wastewater Source
Control Section.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 11

Fiscal

Operating

Sewer
Impact

Year

Revenues

Fees

2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

$

99,970,054
99,826,864
99,801,182
98,313,027
90,296,524
83,983,625
69,567,747
62,458,198
54,103,550
51,855,940

$

2,296,172
252,364
4,123,574
1,059,508
651,892
1,688,194
3,377,310
9,014,607
11,166,589
10,922,644

$

Interest
Revenue
510,982
789,443
1,743,221
1,249,327
454,205
741,153
1,503,998
3,475,325
6,125,873
1,447,004

Other
Revenue 1

Gross
Revenues

$ 2,250,570
2,444,943
2,444,943
1,154,557
-

$ 105,027,778
103,313,614
108,112,920
101,776,419
91,402,621
86,412,972
74,449,055
74,948,130
71,396,012
64,225,588

Note 1: Other Revenue consists of the Build America Bond subsidy
2
Note : This schedule presents all non–general obligation long-term debt backed by
pledged revenues. The coverage ratio differs from those required by specific
bond indentures.
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Less
Operating
Expenses
(excluding

Net
Available

depreciation)

Revenues

$

69,679,785
58,794,668
54,694,704
56,145,391
55,504,947
61,789,408
49,074,444
40,390,690
36,862,090
34,582,498

$

35,347,993
44,518,946
53,418,216
45,631,028
35,897,674
24,623,564
25,374,611
34,557,440
34,533,922
29,643,090

Revenue Bonds Debt Service
Principal

Interest

Total

$ 4,635,000
4,460,000
4,285,000
3,325,000
3,165,000
3,040,000
2,940,000
2,855,000
4,960,000
900,000

$ 14,316,609
14,491,841
14,663,728
10,814,162
7,389,013
7,516,088
7,613,388
7,700,313
5,055,359
2,671,000

$ 18,951,609
18,951,841
18,948,728
14,139,162
10,554,013
10,556,088
10,553,388
10,555,313
10,015,359
3,571,000
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Coverage
2
Ratio
1.87
2.35
2.82
3.23
3.40
2.33
2.40
3.27
3.45
8.30

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Net Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 12

Fiscal

Net
Revenue

Outstanding Debt1
Advances
from Other

Year

Bonds

Governments

2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

$ 267,480,273
272,529,262
273,659,030
278,160,954
153,910,022
157,253,493
160,471,964
163,590,434
166,623,904
171,762,375

$

7,325,379
7,301,283

$

Capital

Total Debt

Lease

Outstanding

59,239,521
60,086,436
-

$ 267,480,273
272,529,262
332,898,551
338,247,390
153,910,022
157,253,493
160,471,964
163,590,434
173,949,283
179,063,658

Debt
Per Equivalent
Single-Family
Dwelling 2
$

Percentage
of Personal
Income 3

661.02
676.75
829.33
845.24
385.45
396.30
407.43
423.73
460.21
487.26

Note 1: Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
Note 2: Equivalent single-family dwelling data is shown at schedule 7.
Note 3: Per capita income data is shown at Schedule 13. Personal income for 2014 not yet available.
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N/A
0.45%
0.61%
0.63%
0.29%
0.29%
0.31%
0.33%
0.37%
0.40%

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 13

Per
Capita
County
Personal Unemployment

Fiscal

County

Personal
Income

Year

Population

(in thousands)

Income

Rate

Enrollment

County
Labor
Force 2

2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005

1,462,000
1,450,000
1,436,000
1,422,000
1,409,000
1,394,000
1,381,000
1,370,000
1,361,000
1,349,000

NA
60,668,975
54,861,602
53,612,730
52,377,247
54,078,812
52,572,684
50,165,916
47,563,421
45,282,367

NA
41,837
38,202
37,700
37,184
38,782
38,064
36,629
34,952
33,569

8.8%
10.5%
12.1%
12.6%
11.3%
7.2%
5.4%
4.8%
5.0%
5.6%

240,000
238,000
237,000
237,000
238,000
238,000
238,000
238,000
239,000
238,000

679,300
684,000
685,400
677,400
682,000
682,700
681,800
677,200
670,100
664,000

School

Note: NA = Not available until April 2015. Information will be updated next fiscal year.
2
Note : County Labor Force numbers from California Employment Department were
historically updated March 2011 from FY2003 thru FY2011.

Source: Sacramento County Comprehensive Financial Report
County Labor Force from California Employment Department
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
Schedule 14

Employer

Number of

Percent of
County Labor

Employees a

Force 1 c

Kaiser Permanente
Sutter/California Health Services
Raley's Inc. / Bel-Air
Mercy/Catholic Healthcare West
Intel Corporation
Hewlett-Packard Co.
Wells Fargo & Co.
HealthNet of CA
Cache Creek Casino Resort
Pacific Gas & Electric

2014
9,494
9,109
7,397
6,240
6,000
3,249
3,200
2,400
2,358
2,223

2014
1.53%
1.47%
1.19%
1.01%
0.97%
0.52%
0.52%
0.39%
0.38%
0.36%

Kaiser Permanente
Intel Corporation
Raley's Inc. / Bel-Air
Sutter/California Health Services
Mercy/Catholic Healthcare West
SBC Communications
Hewlett-Packard Co.
Wal-Mart
EDS
HealthNet of CA

2005 b
11,729
11,284
8,203
8,000
6,000
5,753
4,500
3,220
3,693
3,300

2005 c
1.88%
1.81%
1.31%
1.28%
1.04%
0.92%
0.72%
0.52%
0.59%
0.53%

Note 1: County labor force is shown in schedule 13
Source a: Sacramento Business Journal Annual Book of Lists
Source b: Sacramento Area Commerce and Trade Organization
Source c: California Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Number of Employees by Identifiable Activity
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 15

2014

Maintenance and
Operations

2013

Full-time-Equivalent Employees as of June 30
(1)
2012 (2) 2011
2010 2009
2008
2007

2006

2005

181

187

178

169

167

168

166

166

204

198

Engineering

66

46

48

44

46

40

46

46

51

40

Administration

44

43

47

96

100

102

97

98

55

50

291

276

273

309

313

310

309

310

310

288

Total Employees

Note: The District has no employees; the above reflects County employees working
for the District.
(1) In 2009 Administration includes staff from Administration, Warehouse, Safety & Training,
Technical Support, Communication Media Officer, and Asset Management.
(2) In 2012 the Sanitation District Agency went through re-organization; 33 FTE positions were
moved from Sacramento Area Sewer District to Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District.
Source: SASD Operations budget documents.
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SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Operating and Capital Indicators
Fiscal Years 2004-2005 through 2013-2014
Schedule 16

2014
Pump Stations

2013

2012

2011

Fiscal Year
2010
2009

108

107

106

104

103

98

290,446

286,259

284,241

282,862

281,593

280,139

Miles of Serviceline

1,384

1,358

1,348

1,339

1,333

1,326

Miles of Pipe

2,995

2,991

2,984

3,019

2,977

2,979

64,816

65,093

64,998

65,021

64,840

64,762

273

270

270

270

270

270

Service Connections

Manholes
Area of SASD (square miles)

Note: NA = Information not available
Source: SASD Geographic Information System report
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2008

2007

2006

2005

98

96

95

90

277,077

263,377

250,033

244,140

1,312

1,247

1,184

1,156

2,966

2,923

2,876

2,811

64,415

62,970

61,860

60,460

268

268

268

268
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Intentionally Blank
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BOND DISCLOSURE SECTION

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Sacramento, California
Bond Disclosure Section
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE SACRAMENTO COUNTY
SANITATION DISTRICT FINANCING AUTHORITY AND
SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2013-2014

On October 1, 1993, the District entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement with the
Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District (SRCSD) to form the Sacramento County
Sanitation Districts Financing Authority (the Authority) for the purpose of facilitating the financing
of acquisition and/or construction of real and personal property in and for the District and
SRCSD. The Board of Directors of the District serves as the Authority’s governing board.
This section is provided in accordance with the requirements of the:
“Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the Sacramento County Sanitation Districts Financing
Authority of its Revenue Bonds Series 2005”
“Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the Sacramento County Sanitation Districts Financing
Authority of its Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A Federally Taxable Direct Subsidy Build America
Bonds and Series 2010B (2010 Bonds)”
The material provided under the Certificates is intended to meet or exceed the requirements of
Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12(b) (5) (the Rule). The data tables provided
herein apply to the Series 2005 Revenue Bond and the Series 2010 Revenue Bond issue.
This Bond Disclosure Section included within the District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) provides the information required by the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. The
CAFR, in turn, will be filed with the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) which
transmits it to the National Repositories. The CAFR may also be found at www.sacsewer.com.
ANNUAL REPORT
As required by the Certificates, this annual report is incorporated into the CAFR and thus,
includes by reference, the audited financial statements of the District for the prior fiscal year.
The annual report also contains the following six (6) sections as required in the Certificate:
(1) A table indicating the number or residential and commercial customer accounts (by
equivalent single family dwellings or other appropriate measure) and the percentage
of service charge revenues for the immediately preceding five (5) fiscal years.
(2) A table listing the ten (10) largest industrial customers and the total service charge
revenues received from each of such customers for the immediately preceding fiscal
year.
(3) A table providing a comparison of sewer service rates and impact fees for singlefamily residences for the District.
(4) A table providing the amount of delinquent service charges which were added to the
tax rolls for the immediately preceding five (5) fiscal years.
(5) A table setting forth the collection rates for charges imposed by the District on its
customers for the immediately preceding five (5) fiscal years.
(6) A table showing the Revenues, Maintenance and Operation Costs, and Net
Revenues (as these three terms are defined in the Installment Purchase Contract),
debt service coverage, and certain fund balances of the District for the immediately
preceding five (5) fiscal years.
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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE SACRAMENTO COUNTY
SANITATION DISTRICT FINANCING AUTHORITY AND
SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2013-2014

REPORTING OF SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
As of June 30, 2014, none of the events listed in Section 5 of the Certificates have occurred for
the Series 2005 and Series 2010 Bonds issued by the Financing Authority. As of June 30,
2014, there is no knowledge on the part of the Board of Directors, officers, or employees of
Sacramento Area Sewer District of any impending significant event that would require
disclosure under the provisions of the Certificate.
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
The District collects service charges for SASD and SRCSD per the Master Interagency
Agreement. The bimonthly invoices sent to customers list an amount for “Local Sewer” (to
recover charges for the wastewater collection systems operated by the District), and a separate
amount for “Regional Sewer” (to recover the charges imposed by SRCSD for treatment
services).
Section (1)

A table indicating the number of residential and commercial customer
accounts (by equivalent single-family dwelling) and the percentage of
service charge revenues for the immediately preceding five (5) fiscal years.
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30
Residential/Commercial

Fiscal Year Ended
June 30,

Number of Equivalent
Single-family Dwelling

Percentage of Service
Charge Revenues

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

399,298
400,178
401,405
402,705
404,647

99.0%
99.0%
99.0%
99.0%
99.0%
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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE SACRAMENTO COUNTY
SANITATION DISTRICT FINANCING AUTHORITY AND
SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2013-2014

Section (2)

A table listing the ten (10) largest industrial customers and the total service
charge revenues received from each of such customers for the immediately
preceding fiscal year.
Revenues
Received

Largest Industrial Customers

Section (3)

Sacramento County Airport System
Procter and Gamble Manufacturing
City of Sacramento, EA Fairbaim WTP
H.P. Hood, LLC
Aerojet Commercial
Huhtamaki Food Services, Inc.
Rio Cosumnes Correctional Center
Air Products Manufacturing Co
Mission Linen Supply
Raging Waters, Sacramento

$

147,532
33,602
29,945
19,225
15,210
11,958
9,866
7,901
6,730
5,135

TOTAL

$

287,104

A table providing a comparison of sewer service rates and impact fees for
single-family residences for the District.
Sewer Rates and Impact Fees
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Monthly Services Charges

SRCSD
$ 26.00

SASD
$ 19.85

TOTAL
$ 45.85

Sewer Impact Fees (a)

$ 4,304

$ 2,362

$ 6,666

(a) – SRCSD impact fee is based on new area fee. Infill area impact fee is $2,543.
SASD fee is based on expansion area. Relief area impact fee is $461.
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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE SACRAMENTO COUNTY
SANITATION DISTRICT FINANCING AUTHORITY AND
SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2013-2014

Section (4)

A table providing the amount of delinquent service charges which were
added to the tax rolls for the immediately preceding five (5) fiscal years.
Collection Rates for SASD
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30
(rounded to nearest thousand)

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30

Number of Delinquent
Accounts

Percent of Accounts
Delinquent

Delinquent Amounts
Placed on Tax Rolls

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

20,081
18,709
17,240
16,458
15,851

6.77%
6.28%
5.77%
5.48%
5.26%

$12,186,728
11,702,902
11,699,567
11,345,030
11,210,658

Section (5)

A table setting forth the collection rates for charges imposed by the District
on its customers for the immediately preceding five (5) fiscal years.

Fiscal Year
Ended June 30

Total Amount of Service
Charges

Total Amount
Collected

Amount Assigned to
County under Teeter
Plan

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

$83,516,000
94,813,872
95,988,816
95,825,402
96,565,734

$82,182,940
93,504,682
94,690,531
94,544,361
95,546,823

$1,333,060
1,309,190
1,298,285
1,281,041
1,018,911
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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE SACRAMENTO COUNTY
SANITATION DISTRICT FINANCING AUTHORITY AND
SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT
Fiscal Year 2013-2014

Section (6)

A table showing the Revenues, maintenance and Operation Costs, Net
Revenues, debt service coverage (as these three term are defined in the
Installment Purchase Contract), and certain fund balances of the district for
the immediately preceding five (5) fiscal years.

Revenues, Maintenance and Operations Costs,
Net Revenues, Debt Service Coverage and Certain Fund Balances of the
District for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Operating revenues:
Sewer service fees
Sewer Impact fees
Other

2012

2013

2014

$ 83,516 $ 94,814 $ 95,989 $ 95,825 $ 96,566
652
1,060
4,124
252
2,296
3,499
3,812
4,002
3,404
6,781

Non-operating revenues:
Interest income
Build America Bond subsidy

Total revenue
M&O Expenses:
Total operating expense
Less depreciation and
amortization

Net revenue, including
impact fees
Senior lien debt service

2011

2010

Revenues:

90,949

99,373

103,925

100,079

102,266

454
-

1,249
1,155

1,743
2,445

789
2,445

511
2,251

454

2,404

4,188

3,234

2,762

91,403

101,777

108,113

103,313

105,028

82,912

85,476

85,492

92,276

103,860

(27,408)

(29,331)

(30,797)

(33,481)

(34,181)

55,504

56,145

54,695

58,795

69,679

$ 35,899 $ 45,632 $ 53,418 $ 44,518 $ 35,349
(1)

Net revenue coverage
Reserve balances, end of year

$ 10,554 $ 14,139 $ 18,949 $ 18,952 $ 18,952
3.40

3.23

2.82

2.35

1.87

$ 30,367 $ 32,995 $ 33,023 $ 34,023 $ 41,036
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